FOI –Public Service Users Network (PSUN)
Meeting 08 June 2016

Draft Minutes 

Attendance:  See Appendix 1
Chair: Meiread Ashe, Department of Public Expenditure and Reform

The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting.

 Minutes and Matters Arising
The minutes of the previous meeting were agreed and adopted.  There were no matters arising.

Chair pointed out that all actions post the meeting of the 9th March were now enacted.

FAQ, s in the member’s area in relation to personal information have been updated, as are presentations on FOI.

It was agreed that the Statistical returns would be returned to CPU on a bi-annual basis


Update
1. Reuse of Public Sector information  
The Chair introduced Mr. Martin Troy, who heads the Open Data initiative in D/PER.
 Mr Troy stated that the E.U. directive on Public Sector Information of 2013 (P.S.I of 2013) has been revised, the scope has been extended to include for instance, “Cultural Institutions” There are a number of associate Regulations and circulars available in relation to that change, in particular, S.I 525 of 2015. 
Mr. Troy went on to say that P.S.I is not another form of access regime, documents must be pre-existing, published in machine readable format, and,  if a public body does not have the documents in a readable format the body does not have to make them available to a requester. 
 The issue of a licence came up, Mr troy pointed out that Circular 12 of 2016 supersedes any previous licence. 
Mr Troy went on to say that organisations should be pro-active in release of information and offered to engage with Public Bodies directly to further their knowledge on the P.S. I regulations. 
Member asked “where does the responsibility lie if a request under PSI  is received by an organisation , Mr. Troy said in his opinion the person most suited would be the person  who co-ordinates the FOI Requests .
The Chair then thanked Mr. Troy for his contribution to the meeting. 



2. FOI Conference 2016


The Chair said that a conference hosted by CPU is proposed to be held in the last quarter of 2016, she said that it is proposed that a representative from the OIC will be among the speakers at the event. There was discussion about topics that could be covered and members suggested the following could be considered;
Case Law around exemptions, Public Interest Test, Harm Test, Submissions to the OIC Reflections on the 2014 Act and how it is operating, Search and Retrieval fees. Guidance on requests in relation to records of the deceased.
The Chair then asked members to reflect on further topics to be considered and to contact the CPU with their suggestions.



3 Website
   
 IT helpdesk 

The Chair advised that scoping discussions have taken place with O.G.C.I.O on the role out of a new I.T helpdesk, this is in line with the Code of Practice on FOI. 
The chair explained that it is envisaged that it will take the form of a discussion forum broken down into Sections of the Act.  
FOI officers will be able to tag on to whatever Section of the FOI Act they have questions on and, will be able to interact with other FOI officers. It can be compared to “instant messaging” and will be user friendly.  It was suggested that statistics could be uploaded there by Public Bodies. She said any suggestions from members would be very welcome in relation to the helpdesk. The question of listing of Legal Advices came up and CPU said it wold look in to this.




FAQ’s –

The Chair said that the FAQ’s can be found in the member’s area and the Public facing side of the FOI website.
Third Party information and the appeals process were mentioned by members and the chair agreed to consult with the OIC with a view to the OIC publishing Guidance on these matters.
One member said that the use of Section 15(4) and then if the requester refuses to refine a request 15(1)c where necessary should be used by organisations in dealing with voluminous requests.
Personal information was discussed. The Chair pointed out that usually no charge applies to requests for personal information, but where a significant numbers of records are sought by a requester a charge can apply, if that is the case then the means of the requester must be taken in to account.

Up-dated letters
The Chair told members that updated sample letters are on the FOI website at www.foi.gov.ie; 
It was agreed to flag all FOI officers when changes were made to the website.

Statistics
Statistics
The Chair pointed out that it was agreed at the last Network Meeting to submit statistics to the CPU bi-annually, the template produced by CPU was also agreed. She further pointed out that in the latest OIC Annual Report (2015) it was critical of Public Bodies not returning the Statistical information on time to the OIC.
 There was a lot of discussion on Column 10 on the statistical form. This is where bodies are asked to calculate the true cost of processing FOI requests. It was agreed that 1% of FOI requests would be calculated.
The chair said that the CPU wants Public Bodies to return the total hours spent in processing a request in monetary terms. There was a lot of discussion around standards rates of pay scales, it was agreed to calculate the true cost on the basis of “average pay scale”
There was a concern if “league tables” would  now be created , but the chair pointed out that no league tables would be created , and that the information gathered would be used by the CPU  only , and not given to any other organisation. 
The chair said discussion would take place regarding the issues with members of the other Network and agreed to get back to the organisations with an agreed template.


Feedback from members

Networks
The Chair stated that that there are a number of Networks up and running and details can be found on the CPU website. 
The Chair asked for feedback from members on their individual Networks.
Following discussions it was stated that a new Network has been set up and is chaired by the FOI officer in the IDA M/s Shirley Carter. The chair welcomed this and thanked the FOI officer in question. Details of the members in that Network can be found at www.foi.gov.ie; 
AOB
A member asked “what are organisations requirements regarding compliance with regard to the Publication Scheme.”
 The chair pointed out that there is a requirement under Section 6 (11) of the Code of Practice that all public bodies must confirm in writing to the relevant Government Minister within 6 months of section 8 of the Act commencing, or 6 months after they become an public Body if that is later, that they are in compliance with section 8 and have published the publication scheme and information in that regard. She also said that the Office of the Information Commissioner will monitor Public Bodies compliance in this regard.
A member had a question re the “Dispute Resolution Policy” the chair pointed out that a revised policy is now in place, only to disputes between the OIC and the entity, and not to disputes between the entity and a third party can be accepted.
In conclusion the chair then thanked everyone for coming.





























Appendix 1 – Attendance
	NAME
	ORGANISATION

	1
	Meiread Ashe (Chair)                
	CPU

	2
	Ciara Reddy            
	CPU

	3
	Paul McGuire
	Citizens Information Board

	4
	John Conway
	LGMA

	5
	Olive Falsey
	Meath County Council

	6
	Patricia O Brien 
	Our Lady’s Children’s Hospital 

	7
	Miriam O’Flanagan
	Courts Service

	8
	Emma Kelly
	Solas

	9
	Marie Cussen
	ComReg

	10
	Karen Vaughey
	EPA

	11
	Ana Bolser
	EPA

	12
	Lorraine Sibley
	NTMA

	13      
	Mary Penny
	Failte Ireland

	14              
	Eileen Fallon 
	Beaumont Hospital

	15      
	Mary Duffy
	AIT

	16
	Sinead  McBride
	Trinity College

	17                   
	Sarah Keaveney 
	D/AHG

	18        
	 Deirdre Mc Caughey 
	St Vincent’s Hospital


	19      
	Donal Devery
	HSE

	20       
	Brian Duffy 
	Roscommon County Council

	21 
	Teresa Hendley 
	Federation  of Voluntary  Bodies





Apologies

	NAME
	ORGANISATION

	1
	Deborah Molloy
	Broadcasting Authority of Ireland

	2
	Judy Ni Dhibhain
	Udaras Na Gaeltachta

	3
	Helen Purcell
	Wicklow Co.Co.

	4
	Evelyn O Connor 
	D/PER

	5
	Phil Flood 
	ODCE

	6
	Dympna Murphy 
	Cork Co. Co.

	7
	Tara O ‘Beirne 
	CER

	8
	Maura Mckenna
	CER

	9        
	John  Leech 
	Irish Water Safety 

	10      
	Rosalie Smyth Lynch
	HSE

	11   
	Aoife O Rourke 
	ETBI

	[bookmark: _GoBack]12 
	Jacqui Verdon 
	Central Bank




Page 5 | 6

